# **ACH Origination**

User Guide for Business

Version 2.0



## **Table of Contents**

Overview	3
How it Works	3
1. Getting Started	3
2. The Key Essentials	3
2.1 Role + Responsibilities	4
2.2 Fraud + Security	5
2.3 General	5
2.4 Risk Assessments	8
2.5 Support	8
3. Templates	9
3.1 Create a Template	9
3.2 Edit or Delete	9
3.3 Payees	10
3.4 Submitting	12
3.4 Scheduled	15
3.5 History	15
3.6 Cancelling	16
4. Notifications + Alerts	16
5. Submission Authorization or Dual-Authorization	16
6. NACHA Operating Rules (Updates)	17
6.1 Effective: April 1, 2025	17
6.2 Effective: March 20, 2026	17
6.3 Effective: June 22, 2026	19
Resources	20
- " .	

## **Overview**

This ACH Origination guide covers key aspects such as account setup, transaction reviews, updates to payment instructions, handling of returns and reversals, and proper termination of services. Together, these steps create a reliable framework for overseeing ACH transactions from initiation to completion.

#### **How it Works**

## Originator > ODFI > ACH Operator > RDFI > Receiver

### Originator

The Originator is the business initiating ACH transactions, whether deposits (credits) or payments (debits). It must maintain and provide authorization upon request and is liable for all transactions processed, requiring evaluation of its creditworthiness.

#### **ODFI (Originating Depository Financial Institution)**

The credit union acts as the ODFI, processing ACH transactions for Originators and is an intermediary between the Originator and the ACH network.

### **ACH Operator**

The ACH Operator is a clearing facility that receives transactions from credit union, routes them to RDFIs, and handles settlement functions.

#### **RDFI** (Receiving Depository Financial Institution)

The RDFI processes transactions into the Receiver's account and manages exceptions like insufficient funds or unauthorized transactions. Non-compliance with ACH Rules may result in fines or loss of standing.

#### Receiver

The Receiver is the individual or business that authorizes the ACH transaction. For payment (credit) transactions, written authorizations are required. While written authorizations for collection (debit) transactions are not mandatory, they are strongly encouraged for record-keeping and compliance purposes.

## 1. Getting Started

This guide will help you understand the essential aspects of using ACH Origination, ensuring a smooth and secure process. Our goal is to provide clear guidance on your role and responsibilities while addressing any expectations with transparency and efficiency. By following best practices and security measures, you can maximize the benefits of ACH Origination and your overall banking experience.

## 2. The Key Essentials

Before we begin, it's important you feel well-informed and confident in navigating ACH Origination discussions, comply with regulatory requirements and optimize your operations.

Below is a list of items that will help with this process:

## 2.1 Role + Responsibilities

## I. Understanding NACHA

Retain a copy of National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) Operating Rules and comply with all requirements of the rules.

If you do not have a copy of the current NACHA Operating Rules, see the Resources section below.

## **II. Customer + Vendor Impact**

• Collect necessary account information for credit / debit authorizations before originating entries to the intended Receiver's account.

This must include a minimum of the following:

- 1. Acknowledgement that entries must comply with laws of the United States.
- 2. Statement authorizing Originator to initiate credit and/or debit entries.
- 3. Account number and routing number of accounts.
- 4. Identification of account type (checking, savings, etc.)
- 5. Provisions for termination of the authorization, including any policies for automatic termination in the case of excessive returns or member abuse or termination of loan payment debits when the loan has been paid in full.
- 6. Individual identification number
- 7. Date and signature
- Inform customers and vendors about ACH transaction schedules and ensure their accounts are prepared.
- Securely store account information.

## III. Personnel + Training

- Ensure employees who handle ACH transactions are trained on compliance and operational requirements.
- Ensure two authorized individuals (dual control) are involved in the approval process.
- Avoid password sharing and maintain individual credentials to uphold security and accountability.

## 2.2 Fraud + Security

## I. Safe Storage of Data

• Retain all ACH Credit / Debit Authorizations and terminations at least **two (2) years** from final ACH transfer - including revocations.

Examples can be found at verveacu.com/business/resources/

Ensure that all documentation, whether physical or electronic, are securely stored in a locked or
encrypted space. Once the retention period has passed, securely shred documents to safeguard
sensitive information and prevent fraud.

**Recommended:** Create a disaster recovery plan to safeguard critical operations in the event of an unexpected disruption or system failure.

## **II. Fraudulent Activity**

- Utilize fraud detection tools and secure systems for initiating ACH transactions.
- Understand the risks of ACH fraud, including unauthorized transactions.
- Report any fraud or irregular activity to the credit union **immediately**.

### 2.3 General

### I. Limits

- The credit union uses a good funds model, ensuring that all funds are verified and available for processing transactions **one (1) business days prior.**
- If you submit a file that causes a limit to be exceeded, the file will be suspended, deleted, or require special approval before submitting.
- Be aware of transaction thresholds for Single, Daily, Weekly, and Monthly limits.
- Clearly define limits for all users and restrict access to only the necessary accounts.
- Implement dual authorization or secondary approval authorizations to mitigate risk.

#### **II. Submissions**

• Each ACH transaction is accompanied by a three-character identifier referred to as a standard entry class (SEC) code. The code defines how authorization for the transaction was obtained. The following chart outlines and defines the credit union's SEC codes being used:

Туре	Code	Description
Consumer Payments	PPD	Credit consumer accounts for payroll direct deposit, bonuses, refunds and more.
Consumer Collections	PPD	Debit consumer accounts for goods and services.
Business Payments	CCD	Credit businesses for services and distribute or consolidate funds between two businesses.
Business Collections	CCD	Debit businesses accounts for goods or services.

• Next day vs. Same Day ACH submissions (notify for emergencies)

## III. Cutoffs, Holidays, and Weekends

- ACH credit and debit files should be submitted before 1:00 pm CST one (1) day before the effective date of the file.
- Transactions intended for Same Day settlement must be submitted by 1:00 pm CST.

"Business days" are days the Federal Reserve is open. ACH file transfers and online funds transfers will not be processed on days Verve is closed, including federal holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays. Originators must avoid setting settlement dates for these days.

For updates, visit federalreserve.gov for the 'Holidays Observed - K.8'.

### III. Prenotifications

- Prenotifications, or Prenotes, are zero-dollar transactions that verify a recipient's account information and ensure accuracy before sending actual funds.
- Prenotes are not required but are strongly encouraged. If sent, must wait at least **three (3) business days** after they are processed before initiating a live transaction.
- If a response is not received by the end of the third day, you may initiate live transactions. If you receive a Return or Notification of Change (NOC), you must correct your records prior to initiating live dollar transactions. You may choose to submit another prenote file after making your corrections; however, this is not required. The prenotification transaction codes differ from other entry codes.

The following chart includes common transaction codes by account and transaction type:

Account - Transaction Type	Return / NOC	Normal Entry	Prenote
Checking Account – Credit	21	22	23
Checking Account Debit – Debit	26	27	28
Savings Account – Credit	31	32	33

Please refer to the NACHA Operating Rules and Guidelines for more information on the prenotification process

## **IV.** Returns + Errors

### Returns

- Must be completed within **two (2) business days** from the settlement date.
- Regulation E is a consumer protection that allows a consumer up to sixty (60) days to dispute unauthorized or incorrect transactions.
- The most common NOC reasons are listed below. A full listing can be found in the NACHA
  Operating Rules Return Entries.

Description	Code
Insufficient Funds	R01
Account Closed	R02
No Account / Unable to Locate Account	R03
Invalid Account Number	R04
Return Per ODFI Request	R06
Authorization Revoked by Customer	R07
Payment Stopped	R08
Uncollected Funds	R09
Customer Advises Not Authorized, Improper or Ineligible	R10
Corporate Customer Advises Not Authorized	R29

## **Notice of Change (NOC)**

Must be transmitted to the ODFI within two (2) business days from the settlement date.

- Must be completed within six (6) business days from the settlement date.
- The most common NOC reasons are listed below. A full listing can be found in the NACHA
  Operating Rules Notice of Change.

Description	Code
Incorrect DFI Account Number	C01
Incorrect Routing Number	C02
Incorrect Routing Number and Incorrect Account Number	C03
Addenda Format Error	C13

#### Reversals

Allow for three (3) business days to ensure there are no potential returns from the RDFI.

- Please contact Business Support for assistance in processing these requests.
- The reversal must be initiated within **five (5) business days** from the settlement date of the original transaction.
- The originator must notify the receiver of the reversal.
- You are generally allowed **one (1) attempt** to reverse an erroneous or duplicate ACH transaction.

**Note:** Reversals do not guarantee that the funds will be returned to the Originator. Ensure that all transactions are being sent to the intended Receivers

## 2.4 Risk Assessments

- The credit union mandates a regular risk assessment of the business's ACH practices at least annually.
- Authorizations must be readily accessible so if warranted, a copy can be provided within a ten (10)
   day timeframe required by NACHA rules.

## 2.5 Support

Technical assistance and support for ACH Origination is available by contacting:

Business Support at 800.448.9228, Option 5

## 3. Templates

## 3.1 Create a Template

An ACH template is a set of instructions that once created and saved, can be used in the future as the starting point from which to send payments.

Before you can create ACH templates, you must be assigned to a role with **Create ACH Template**, **Edit ACH Template**, and **ACH Account permissions**.

To create a new template:

- 1. Click the New Template button, the + New Template window will display.
- 2. Enter a **Template Name**.
- Select an Offset Account, Company Name, and Transaction Type from the dropdown menu.
- 4. Enter a **Company Entry Description**. This provides a description of the transaction to the payee.
- 5. Select an Access Level for the template. A template marked as Restricted would only be viewable by a user with Access to Restricted Templates permissions.
- 6. Click the Import Payees button to upload a NACHA (.bet) or .csv (comma separated value) file into business banking for future use (optional). The format required for the file upload is noted in the Show file setup instructions link.
- 7. Click the Create Template button to save the new template or click the Cancel button to close the New Template window without saving.
- 8. A confirmation message will display confirming the template has been created.

## 3.2 Edit or Delete

#### I. Edit

The edit template function allows business users to edit the Template Name, Company Entry Description, Offset Account, and the Access Level. Edits aren't applied to templates pending authorization, authorized templates, or future-dated templates. To edit a template, business users must be assigned the Edit ACH Template permission.

To edit a template:

- 1. Select the template to Edit
- 2. Click the **Details** tab.

- 3. Click Edit next to the field to edit.
- 4. Update the field as needed.
- 5. Click Save Changes. The Verification Needed window might open for the business user to verify their identity.
- 6. Click Verify. A message confirms the template is updated.

**Note:** Edits are not applied to templates pending authorization, authorized templates, or future-dated templates.

#### II. Delete

Business users can delete ACH templates. Business users must be assigned the **Delete ACH Template** permission to delete a template.

A user can't delete templates that are pending authorization, authorized for future use, or future-dated.

To delete a template:

- a. Select the template to delete.
- b. Click the **Details** tab.
- c. Click Delete template.
- d. In the **Delete Template?** dialog, click **Delete Template**. A message confirms the template is deleted.

**Note:** Deletion does not apply to templates pending authorization, authorized templates, or future-dated templates. If you delete an ACH template that has been scheduled, the system will allow the credit union to process the already scheduled template.

To cancel a future-dated template, click the **Scheduled** tab and click **Cancel** for the template to prevent it from being processed.

## 3.3 Payees

Before a business user can add payees to a template, the business user must have **Payees** with ACH **Payment methods** and must be assigned the **Manage Template Entries** permission.

Business users can't use a mobile device to delete ACH Template payees, but they can add payees or edit ACH Template Payee amounts and statuses.

## I. Add a Payee to a Template

- a. Select the ACH template for which you need to add a payee.
- b. Click Add Payees.

The **Add Payees to Template** window opens. If needed, a business user can click **Manage Payees** to open the **Business Admin** widget to create, modify, or delete payees.

- c. Find the **Payees** to add. Use the **Search Payees** field if necessary.
- **d.** Select the checkbox next to the payees you want to add to the template.
- e. Click **Add Payees**. You can't add duplicate payment methods for the same payees in ACH template submissions. Alkami's Pass Thru feature supports this feature.

The Verification Needed window might appear for the business user to verify their identity.

7. Click **Verify**. A confirmation message confirms the payees are added to the ACH template.

## II. Edit a Payee in a Template

Business users can edit payees in a template. Business users must be assigned the **Manage Template Entries** permission to edit a Payee.

Changes to payees aren't applied to templates pending authorization, authorized templates, or future-dated templates.

- 1. Select the ACH template that has a **Payee** needing an update.
  - i. **Payees** to the right of the **Amount** column label. To update the amount to zero (\$0) for all payees, click **Set All Amounts to \$0**. All active payees' amounts are set to \$0 in the ACH Template.
  - ii. All active payees must have an amount greater than \$0 to make Save Changes active.
  - iii. The **Account** column displays the ACH account assigned to the payee and can't be changed. You manage ACH accounts in the payee's payment methods.
- 2. In the **Status** list, select from the following statuses:

#### **Active**

The payee is a live entry that is included in the template sent to your FI for processing.

#### On Hold

The payee isn't a live entry and isn't included in the template submission. For example, an employee on unpaid leave can be designated on hold until they return. A hold icon ( along with a number indicating the number of payees with an On Hold status appear on the ACH template.

#### **Prenote**

The system creates a zero-dollar prenote entry in the template. A business can submit a prenote entry for a new employee using direct deposit to ensure the accuracy of the payee's bank and account information. A prenote icon (□), along with a number indicating the number of payees in a Prenote status, appear on the ACH template.

- 3. In the **Amount** field, enter an amount that is greater than \$0 for payees in an Active status.
- 4. Optional:

• In the **Addenda** field, enter up to 80 characters of additional details for the transaction. For example, invoice details or reference numbers that help the payee apply the payment in an accounting program.

- Optional: In the **Discretionary Data** field, enter a two-character code for a company's internal use. No specific format is required.
- 5. Click **Save Changes**. A message confirms the template is updated.

## III. Remove a Payee from a Template

Business users can remove payees from a template. Before payees can be removed from a template, a business user must be assigned the Manage Template Entries permission.

1. Select the ACH template from which to remove the payee.

#### To remove an individual payee:

- a. Click Edit next to the payee to remove.
- b. Click Remove Payee.
- c. In the confirmation prompt, click Yes, remove.

#### To remove multiple payees in a template:

- a. Click Edit All Payees to the right of the Amount column label.
- b. Select the checkbox for each payee you want to remove or click Remove to select all payees.
- c. Click Save Changes. A confirmation prompt appears.
- d. Click Remove Payees. A message confirms the template is updated.

## 3.4 Submitting

## I. Submit a Template

The Submit Template feature allows you to submit templates for authorization (if needed) and processing.

In order to submit ACH templates, you must be assigned a role with **Submit Template permissions**, permissions for the ACH transaction type, and the offset account used in the template.

#### To submit an ACH template:

- a. Select the desired template to submit for processing.
- b. Click the Review and Submit button.
- c. Select the template to be a **One Time** or **Recurring** submission.

#### If you select One Time:

i. In the **Deliver By** field, select a date.

The deliver by date represents the date the transactions are expected to settle with the payee's account. The system checks the daily cutoff time, business processing days, holidays, effective entry date rules, and future day limits to determine if, and when, the template can be scheduled.

Select the current date to submit a Same Day ACH. If the ACH template is submitted with the current date but is past the cutoff time, the template is considered for processing and settlement the following business day.

#### ii. Click Submit.

If submitting a Same Day ACH, a confirmation window opens. Click **Submit Template** to confirm the Same Day ACH submission.

If submitting an immediate ACH template that matches an existing immediate ACH submission or if submitting an ACH template with the same Deliver By date and amount as an existing ACH submission, a confirmation window opens. Click **Yes**, **resubmit** to confirm the submission.

### If you select Recurring:

Note: Recurring submissions can't be set up using a mobile device.

- i. In the **Frequency** list, select the recurring timeframe.
- ii. In the **Starting** field, use the calendar to select a start date.
- iii. In the Ending field, select Never or use the calendar to select a specific date.
- iv. In the Non-Business Day Handling, select whether the template must be submitted before or after the non-business day.
- v. Click Submit.

## **II. Submit a Quick ACH**

Using Quick ACH, your business users can send a one-time debit or credit ACH. Quick ACH supports all ACH Transaction Types that are enabled for the business. Any ACH Transaction Type that is only available for ACH Pass Thru submissions aren't eligible for Quick ACH.

#### To submit a Quick ACH:

- a. Go to Create an ACH > Quick ACH
- b. From Offset Account, select the account for the transaction.
- c. Select the **Payment Company** if more than one is available.

- d. Select the Transaction Type, such as Consumer Credits or Business Debits.
- e. Enter the Entry Description. This information describes the transaction to the payee.
- f. Select the Access Level as Normal or Restricted.
- g. Enter the **Amount** of the transaction.
- h. Enter the **Deliver By** date for the transaction.
- i. Start typing the Payee's name. If the payee already exists, the name appears.

To create a new Payee for the transaction, click + Create New Payee. A new window opens so the business user can fill in the information.

- If the business wants to use this Payee in future, select the Save Payee For Future Submission checkbox. If this is a one-time use Payee, leave the checkbox cleared. A one-time Payees' information is available in the Pending and History pages for the business user and is saved in reports for the FI Administrator to provide research and customer service.
- j. If you selected an existing Payee, the payees' Payment Methods open. The business user can select the Payment Method to use for the transaction.
  - If the Payment Method doesn't exist, the business user can click **Add new payment method** to enter a new Payment Method for this Payee.
- k. Click **Submit**. The submission status might display as **Scheduled**, **Needs Authorization**, or **Pending FI Review** based on the limits of the submitting user and business.

#### III. Submit a Pass Thru

A pass thru file contains detailed information about transactions, such as payees, account and routing numbers, and amounts for a more efficient way of processing transactions.

### To submit an ACH Pass Thru file:

- a. From the Create ACH list, select Import File.
- b. Click Browse Files or drag-and-drop to upload a Nacha TXT or CSV file.
- c. Click **Continue** or click **Save Template Only** to import batches and payees from the file as templates for future use.
- d. Online banking validates the file. If there is an issue with the file, an exception or error message appears. Messages in an orange box are exceptions and are informational. This allows the business user to proceed; the system corrects exceptions. Messages in a red box are errors, and the business user can't proceed until they upload a corrected file.

Note: Submission names must be unique.

e. In the Offset Account list, select an offset account. For credit templates, this account is debited to cover credit transactions such as payroll. For debit templates, this account receives the funds collected from payees.

- f. In the Company Name list, select a name. The ACH Payment Company Name values enable the business to use a unique company name and identification in batch header records. For example, if the business has two locations with separate payroll files, they might require a unique ACH Payment Company for each location. Your FI might require additional company names.
- g. In the **Deliver By** field, select a delivery date from a calendar.
- h. In the Review batch details and submit section, review the details of each batch. Batch Names are generated as [Submission Name\_#] and can't be edited.
- i. In the **Transaction Type** list, select a transaction type.
- j. In the Company Entry Description field, enter a description of the template transaction that is posted to the payee's account. The description can be no more than 10 characters. Examples include Payroll, Direct Dep, Reg Salary, Vendor Pmt, Loan Pymt, and Ins Prem.
- k. Select the checkbox for Restricted Batch.
- I. The Access Level, combined with ACH permissions, controls business user access to ACH templates. Leave the Restricted Batch checkbox cleared to allow all business users with requisite ACH permissions (for example, ACH Transaction Type or ACH Offset Account) to access the template. Select Restricted Batch to ensure only business users with the required ACH permissions plus the Access to Restricted Templates permission can access the template.
- m. Select the Save as template checkbox to add the batch to the saved templates for future use.
- n. Click Save and Submit. The Verification Needed window might open.
- o. In Enter code, enter the code you received and then click Verify. A message confirms the ACH Pass Thru is submitted.

### 3.4 Scheduled

The scheduled tab displays future-dated ACH submissions that are scheduled to be processed by the credit union.

On desktop, business users can click **Show Search** to view and search fields for scheduled ACH submissions, view scheduled ACH submission details, and cancel future-dated ACH submissions using specified search criteria.

On mobile, business users can only view scheduled ACH submission details.

### 3.5 History

The history tab displays pending batches (submissions available for processing) and a template history (submissions that have been completed or rejected by the credit union, rejected when in a **Needs Authorization** status, or canceled by a business user).

On desktop, business users can click **Show Search** to expand an advanced search area to search for completed ACH submissions and view details for these ACH submissions.

On mobile, business users can only view ACH submission details.

When a business user clicks an ACH submission, the ACH submission expands to display the status and additional details about the ACH submission.

## 3.6 Cancelling

### To cancel a scheduled ACH template:

- 1. Click the **Scheduled** tab.
- 2. Find the ACH template and click Cancel.
- 3. Optional: In the Reason field, enter a reason for the cancellation.
- 4. Click Yes, continue. A message confirms the scheduled ACH template is canceled.

The status of the scheduled ACH template changes to canceled and appears on the History tab.

## 4. Notifications + Alerts

Business users can set alerts to stay informed when an ACH function has been completed. This allows users to maintain oversight of the basic functions of ACH Origination.

You can configure ACH alert contact methods in Settings > Notifications

You may turn on the option by selecting the green toggle button. Be sure to select the preferred delivery method for the alert and select Save.

ACH Origination supports the following alerts:

- ACH Template Submitted
- ACH Template Edited
- ACH Requires Authorization
- ACH Authorized
- ACH Authorization Rejected
- ACH Canceled
- ACH Expired (not approved by the cutoff time)
- ACH Processed

## 5. Submission Authorization or Dual-Authorization

For additional guidance, refer to the outlined steps in the Business Admin – User Guide.

## 6. NACHA Operating Rules (Updates)

All ACH Originators are solely responsible for compliance with the NACHA Operating Rules and are strongly encouraged to obtain a current copy of the Rules that are published annually. The NACHA Operating Rules book and other material may be purchased at <a href="www.nacha.org">www.nacha.org</a> or can be found by visiting <a href="www.nacha.org">werveacu.com/business/resources/</a>.

This is a summary-level description of Revisions to *NACHA Operating Rules and Guidelines*. Review your existing processes and procedures to determine whether these changes will impact your organization. Some changes are only intended for financial institutions that participate in the ACH Network. You may need to consult with your software provider to ensure that changes to Company Entry Descriptions and Phase II of fraud monitoring are implemented in a timely manner.

This is NOT intended to be an inclusive summary of the amendments to the NACHA Rules. Please refer to the NACHA Operating Rules and Guidelines for additional detail. All parties are encouraged to become compliant with these rules as soon as possible regardless of the effective date.

## 6.1 Effective: April 1, 2025

## I. Expanding the ODFI Request for Return

This change will require an RDFI to respond to the ODFI with regard to ODFI requests for return of entry.

#### **Key Components**

- The new rule will require the RDFI to respond within 10 banking days of the receipt of the ODFI's request.
- An RDFI is not required to return the entry.
- Nacha's Risk Management Portal will be enhanced prior to the effective date in order to enable the RDFI the capability to respond through the portal.

#### **Impact to Participants**

- Originators should not be impacted by this change.
- Financial Institutions participating in the ACH Network will primarily be impacted.

## 6.2 Effective: March 20, 2026

## I. Standard Company Entry Descriptions (Payroll and Purchase)

These changes to the Nacha Rules are intended to provide additional risk mitigation tools to be used. Requiring the use of PAYROLL and PURCHASE to identify the transaction contained will provide better information to the RDFI when monitoring transactions.

#### **Key Components**

This change establishes two new Company Entry Descriptions, PAYROLL and PURCHASE.
 "PAYROLL" must be used as the Company Entry Description for ACH credits with the PPD

Standard Entry Class Code that are for the payment of wages, salaries and other similar types of compensation.

• "PURCHASE" must be used for all e-commerce purchases. An e-commerce purchase will be defined as a debit entry authorized by a consumer Receiver for the online purchase of goods.

#### **Impact to Participants**

 Originators, Third-Party Service Providers, Third-Party Senders and ODFIs that handle payroll and e-commerce purchase transactions will need to update their systems to utilize the required Company Entry Descriptions.

## II. Fraud Monitoring by Originators, Third-Party Service Providers / Third-Party Senders and ADFIs – Phase I

These changes will require additional fraud monitoring by non-consumer Originators, Third-Party Service Providers, Third-Party Senders and ODFIs. The objective is to reduce the incidences of successful fraud attempts by expanding fraud detection responsibilities within the ACH Network.

### **Key Components**

- This change will require non-consumer Originators, ODFIs, Third-Party Service Providers, and Third-Party Senders to establish and implement risk-based monitoring processes and procedures to identify ACH entries initiated due to "False Pretenses."
- All parties will be required at least annually to review their processes and procedures and make any appropriate updates to address evolving risks.
- This rule change also defines a new term "False Pretenses." This term covers fraud scenarios such as Business Email Compromise, vendor impersonation, payroll impersonation and other payee impersonation.

#### **Impact to Participants**

• This rule will apply to all ODFIs and those non-consumer Originators, Third-Party Service Providers, and Third-Party Senders with an annual ACH origination volume that exceeds 6 million entries in 2023.

## III. RDFI ACH Credit Monitoring - Phase I

This change is intended to reduce the incidence of successful fraud and better enable the recovery of funds when fraud has occurred.

#### **Key Components**

- This change will require RDFIs to establish and implement risk-based processes and procedures reasonably intended to identify credit ACH entries initiated due to fraud.
- RDFIs will be required at least annually to review their processes and procedures and make any appropriate updates to address evolving risks.

#### **Impact to Participants**

RDFIs with annual receipt volume exceeding 10 million entries in 2023 will need to establish
processes and procedures reasonably intended to identify credit entries that are suspected of
being unauthorized or authorized under False Pretenses.

## 6.3 Effective: June 22, 2026

# I. Fraud Monitoring by Originators, Third-Party Service Providers / Third-Party Senders and ADFIs – Phase II

The obligations and responsibilities established in Phase I to reduce incidences of fraud attempts will apply to all originators, Third-Party Service Providers, Third-Party Senders and ODFIs regardless of volume.

### **Key Components**

- This change will require non-consumer Originators, ODFIs, Third-Party Service Providers, and Third-Party Senders to establish and implement risk-based monitoring processes and procedures to identify ACH entries initiated due to 'False Pretenses.'
- All parties will be required at least annually to review their processes and procedures and make any appropriate updates to address evolving risks.

#### **Impact to Participants**

• This rule will apply to all other ODFIs, non-consumer Originators, Third-Party Service Providers, and Third-Party Senders that were not affected in Phase I.

## II. RDFI ACH Credit Monitoring – Phase II

All RDFIs not impacted in Phase I will need to establish processes and procedures reasonably intended to identify credit entries that are suspected of being unauthorized or authorized under False Pretenses.

## Resources

Resources are links to other User Guides and any other resources related to the topic of this guide.

### NACHA Operating Rules

Compliance with the NACHA Operating Rules is required. To obtain a copy of ACH Rules for the current year or for other helpful information about ACH processing, visit the NACHA web site at <a href="https://www.nacha.org">www.nacha.org</a>. Purchasing a copy of ACH Rules entitles your company to access the rules via the Internet at <a href="https://www.achrulesonline.org">www.achrulesonline.org</a>.

- ACH Credit Authorization
- ACH Debit Authorization
- Business Admin User Guide

## **Feedback**

This is a living document and is updated as needed. Please contact the credit union with your feedback.

To ensure that feedback is adequately addressed, please include:

- Document name and version
- Section name
- Suggested feedback

This user guide is for general informational and reference purposes only and is entirely subject and subordinate to the terms of the respective written agreements for the products and services described above. This guide does not constitute a contract or representation or warranty of any kind, express or implied, nor does it in any way supplement, replace, modify, or amend the terms and provisions of the written agreements that govern the products and services. You should review actual product and service agreements carefully to understand the terms that govern the products and services and the rights, responsibilities, and liabilities of parties thereunder.